
CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – APRIL 16, 2024 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on April 16, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose Room 
#CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525, Richardson, 
TX. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman 
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman 
Michael Keller, Commissioner 
Joe Costantino, Commissioner 
Nate Roberts, Commissioner 
Gary Beach, Commissioner 
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Byron Purdy, Commissioner 

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director of Development Services 
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary 

BRIEFING SESSION 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken. 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of April 2, 2024.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Seconded 
by Commissioner Roberts. Motion passed 7-0. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2. ZF 24-04 RISD Railside: Consider and act on a request for approval of an amendment to the
Railside Sub-district of the Main Street/Central Expressway Planned Development District
related to additional allowable uses for a 4.49-acre lot located at 401 S. Sherman Street, on the
east side of S. Sherman Street, south of Phillips Street. Owner: Richardson Independent School
District. Staff: Sam Chavez.

3. ZF 24-05 RISD Gateway Commercial: Consider and act on a request for approval of an
amendment to the Gateway Commercial Sub-district of the Main Street/Central Expressway
Planned Development District related to additional allowable uses for three (3) lots, being a
total of 3.79-acres located at 600, 610 and 616 S. Sherman Street, on the west side of S.
Sherman Street, south of Phillips Street. Owner: Richardson Independent School District.
Staff: Sam Chavez.

Mr. Sam Chavez began by stating ZF 24-04 and ZF 24-05 will be presented together but will
require separate motions at the conclusion of the Commission’s deliberations.

APPROVED



 
 2 
 

Mr. Chavez stated ZF 24-04 is for the property located at 401 S. Sherman Street which is zoned 
Main Street/Central Expressway Planned Development District and is in the Railside Sub-
district. The site area is 4.5-acres has a total building area of 15,578 square feet for the three 
(3) single-story buildings. The subject site has qualifying non-conforming use provisions 
adopted in 2020 that allows property owners to re-tenant specifically identified non-
conforming uses on the property until 2031. Mr. Chavez provided a list of these uses.  
 
Mr. Chavez stated the subject sites for ZF 24-05 located at 600, 610 and 616 S. Sherman Street 
are in the Main Street/Central Expressway Planned Development and located in the Gateway 
Commercial Sub-District.  These properties total 3.79 acres and the total building area is 
65,000-square feet.  The subject properties do not enjoy the qualifying non-conforming use 
provisions adopted in 2020. 
 
Mr. Chavez explained the applicant is requesting that four (4) uses be allowed by right at these 
sites: manufacturing facility, manufacturing facility high-tech, warehouse and wholesale. He 
went on to explain the potential positive and negative impacts of the requests related to the 
sites and sub-districts. The Commission has the options to recommend approval of the requests, 
recommend approval with conditions or to recommend denial of the subject requests. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked for confirmation the property as shown in the Railside Sub-District 
regulating plan, is limited to a maximum of eight (8) stories. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied yes. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked staff to confirm that it is Floyd Branch that runs across the property. 
 
Mr. Chavez confirmed it is and it flows through a drainage channel on the east of the property. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if the Central Trail stops on the east side of the railroad tracks in 
relation to this site. 
 
Mr. Chavez stated that is correct. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there had been discussion about extending Phillips Street east. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied that it is to remain a cul-de-sac because this would require a rail crossing 
to be approved by DART which is unlikely.  
 
Chairman Marsh asked staff to explain the urban mixed-use designation for Sherman Street. 
 
Mr. Chavez explained this portion of Sherman Street is envisioned to be urban and walkable, 
with additional dedication of right-of-way needed to accommodate the mandated streetscape 
improvements. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked staff to confirm the Gateway Commercial site is limited six (6) stories. 
 
Mr. Chavez confirmed, yes. 
 

APPROVED



 
 3 
 

Chairman Marsh asked for clarity whether automotive uses are allowed on the property. 
 
Mr. Chavez explained a portion of the Gateway Commercial sub-district allows automotive 
related uses through a Special Permit. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked for clarity on the location of the Como Motel and if the City was aware 
of future plans for that site. 
 
Mr. Chavez stated it is located behind the building at 610 S. Sherman and the City is only 
aware it was purchased by Pappasitos. 
 
Commissioner Beach asked staff to clarify the expiration date for the non-conforming uses. 
 
Mr. Chavez referenced the list of uses, and explained the property owner can reoccupy the 
building with a use from this list, but after 2031 the only uses that would be allowed are those 
that are permitted in that sub-district. 
 
Commissioner Beach asked if the proposal included a designated expiration date. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied there is no specific time frame, and their intent would be to allow the four 
(4) uses by-right in perpetuity, or until rezoned. 
 
Ms. Sandra Hayes, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, Richardson ISD, 400 S. Greenville 
Avenue stated they were asking for additional uses so they could sell the property at 401 S. 
Sherman Street. The school district does not intend to sell the other properties, but this may 
depend on the budget. 
 
Ms. Hayes continued by saying the ISD didn’t intend to be a landlord and has released most 
tenants from these properties. They intended to redevelop the buildings in the 600 block for 
RISD needs but they were unable to move forward due to lack of funding. She further stated 
all the tenants at 401 S. Sherman Street have vacated.  
 
Scott Morris, Citadel Partners, 7601 Queens Ferry Lane, Dallas, representing Richardson ISD 
on real estate explained that the property at 401 S. Sherman Street is currently under contract 
pending the allowance of the additional uses. He stressed that the 2031 expiration doesn’t give 
a real estate investor time to make an investment decision on the property and they are asking 
for additional flexibility on these sites. 
 
James Watson, Richardson ISD, 400 S. Greenville Avenue spoke to say he believes the pros 
outweigh the cons of this proposal.  

 
Commissioner Keller asked if there were a specific time in the future that they would be willing 
to commit to for an expiration date. 
 
Mr. Morris replied he did not have an answer because an investor would be looking for 
flexibility with no expiration date so they could adapt to a dynamic market. 
 

APPROVED



 
 4 
 

Vice Chairman Southard asked how long the ISD had owned these properties. 
 
Mr. Morris answered approximately two (2) years. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard commented that other than interest rates, market conditions have not 
changed dramatically. 
 
Mr. Morris replied that until this time, zoning had not been an issue, but the market has changed 
dramatically over the last year. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked if the applicant’s comments pertained primarily to 401 S. 
Sherman property or the others as well. 
 
Mr. Morris replied that the preference was for the proposal to be approved for both sites, but 
it was critical for 401 S. Sherman tonight. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked if this was because there is not currently a pending sale for the 
600 block properties. 
 
Mr. Morris confirmed that is correct. 
 
Commissioner Costantino asked if the zoning change would apply to future buyers. 
 
Mr. Morris confirmed that is correct. 
 
Commissioner Roberts asked if a new buyer must meet the PD screening and development 
regulations. 
 
Mr. Chavez answered yes. 
 
Commissioner Roberts asked staff to confirm that if approved, the rights for the additional uses 
would run with the property and for perpetuity. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied, yes. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked the applicant to characterize the type of potential buyer. 
 
Mr. Morris answered it is a real estate investor who purchases and leases small, industrial 
properties. 
 
Vice Chairman Southard asked if there would be a single or multiple tenants.  
 
Mr. Morris replied that there will be multiple tenants. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if the buyer plans to make improvements for the 401 property. 
 

APPROVED



 
 5 
 

Mr. Morris answered there would be interior improvements, but capital improvements have 
not been discussed. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if the buyer has specific tenants that require this change in zoning or 
was this to enhance leasing ability. 
 
Mr. Morris verified they want to enhance the leasing ability and have no tenants at this time. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if the rezoning request was a requirement of the lender. 
 
Mr. Morris stated he is not aware of this requirement, but any investor is going view the 
existing zoning as an impediment to an acquisition.  
 
Chairman Marsh asked if RISD was going to remain a tenant at 401 S. Sherman. 
 
Ms. Hayes answered, no.    
 
Chairman Marsh asked about the difference in the value of this site if it was sold with the 
current zoning and site improvements, versus just the value of the land.  
 
Mr. Morris replied the best-case scenario with the current conditions of the site, the land would 
be considered higher in value.   
 
Chairman Marsh asked if RISD pays property taxes on the property. 
 
Mr. Morris answered no. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked what the assessed value of the property was. 
 
Mr. Morris stated it was 3.8 million dollars. 
  
Chairman Marsh asked what the inside clear height for the buildings at 401 S. Sherman was. 
 
Mr. Morris replied it was fourteen (14) feet. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked if there was a market for industrial manufacturing warehouses that 
could work with the just 14-foot-tall clearance. 
 
Mr. Morris replied that a smaller manufacturing operation would be able to occupy the space. 
 
Chairman Marsh commented that the PD allows a maximum building height of eight (8) stories 
and asked if the applicant has considered this. 
 
Mr. Morris stated that the property was not deep enough for a larger facility.  
 
Chairman Marsh asked if anyone else wished to speak in favor or opposition of this case. 
 

APPROVED



 
 6 
 

Mr. Mark Thomas, 400 Westshore Drive, Richardson owns a commercial fire equipment 
business at 724 S. Sherman Street, and five other companies, stated that they have a vested 
interest in this. He explained it would not be fair to himself and other tenants on Sherman 
Street, who he said also want to rezone their properties if the request was only approved for 
the RISD.  
 
Chairman Marsh asked him if his current use was restricted. 
 
Mr. Thomas stated no, but he could not sell to a buyer unless they plan to tear down the building 
and redevelop it differently. 
 
With no further comments presented, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public 
hearing.  Commissioner Beach seconded the motion, motion passed 7-0. 
 
Commissioner Roberts commented that hat he is understanding of the financial stress the 
Richardson ISD is currently under.  He pointed out that anyone who were to purchase the 
property, particularly 401 S. Sherman, would have to substantially conform to tenets of the 
Sub-District.  He is inclined to vote for approval. 
 
Commissioner Beach asked if the intent of this request was to change the non-conforming 
timeline from six months to nine months for new tenants who populate the building. 
 
Mr. Chavez stated no, the language is what exists. This request is not tied to a timeline. 
 
Commissioner Beach stated he was uneasy switching from a deadline of 2031 to forever. He 
understood investors need to know how long they will be held to the standards. It seems that 
in 25 years you could recoup your profits and cost by then. He has no problem extending this 
for 25 years but is not sure if he can support extending it forever. 
 
Commissioner Southard stated that he has some sympathy for this request for the 401 S. 
Sherman property because of sale is imminent but does not see a reason for making this kind 
of change on the 600 S. Sherman block properties. The big issue it might compromise the 
vision of the district, and he also referred to the statement made by speaker, Mr. Thomas.  He 
feels different about the two requests. 
 
Commissioner Keller stated that he agrees with Commissioner Beach on the point about the 
length of time. If this request had a specific time limitation, he would potentially be more 
comfortable taking the request into consideration. He thinks it is incompatible and that it slows 
the progress.  He referenced Mr. Morris’ point about market forces, but zoning has an impact.  
This property could be purchased and redeveloped in conformance the subdistrict.  If the non-
conforming were would still in place, we could end up with a much larger manufacturing 
facility, which is clearly not in line with what the vision was for this area.  He has sympathy 
for RISD and any landowner that is faced with a similar situation, however this is similar to 
the case before us two weeks ago, where we are setting a dangerous precedent or making 
exceptions. In summary I think that there are enough questions here, and the negatives are 
serious enough that it gives me serious pause.  
 

APPROVED



 
 7 
 

Commissioner Costantino stated that he feels at certain points they can seem bit fickle, but 
decisions like this can be a bit of a slippery slope. 
 
Chairman Marsh explained he is sympathetic to the school district, but these are two anchor 
properties that are critical to redevelopment of that area Allowing these uses is not compatible 
with the intent or the vision.  Normally, we have a specific business or use to consider with the 
request along with a vision and renderings, but this more of a blanket approval. He commented 
maybe the applicant could come back with a more specific application.  
 
Southard asked if it was appropriate to consider a denial without prejudice? 
 
Mr. Chavez stated yes, that is an available option. 
 
Chairman Marsh asked for any other comments. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend denial of Zoning File 24-04 
as presented without prejudice. Commissioner Bohnsack seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 6-1 (Commissioner Roberts opposed). 

 
Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend denial of Zoning File 24-05 

as presented. Commissioner Bohnsack seconded the motion. Motion passed 6-1 
(Commissioner Roberts opposed). 

 
 
ADJOURN 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular 
business meeting at 7:59 p.m. 
 
 
       
Bryan Marsh, Chairman 

APPROVED




